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Labels: Board of Regents

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page
Completed Nov 1 2022
Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is
collected in a survey format within Annual Report portal. When entering information in the portal, some
of the following items may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related
items.

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2021-2022 school year are not required

to complete or submit an annual report this year).

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this
cover page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2022) or you may

not be assigned the correct tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION
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mailto:elitescu@ecsli.org

a. SCHOOL NAME

(Select name from the drop down menu)

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL 800000063984

al. Popular School Name

Evergreen Charter School

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2021)

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2022 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks.

BOARD OF REGENTS

d. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

HEMPSTEAD UFSD

e. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

1/2009

f. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

9/2009

2/74



c. School Unionized

Is your charter school unionized?

No

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of Evergreen Charter School (ECS) is to nuture the intellectual, physical, and social
development of children, grades K-10, through a comprehensive program that promotes academic
excellence and prepares its students for success in school and in life. Evergreen promotes respect for

self, respect for others, and respect for the environment.
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g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Briefly describe each Key Design Elements (KDE) as presented in the schools
approved charter. KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the

school’s mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success.

KDE 1 Second language instruction in Spanish for all
grades.
KDE 2 Integration of ecology throughout the curriculum

and culture with the recurring theme of "reduce,
reuse, recycle".

KDE 3 To foster healthy life choices within a child-
centered, environmentally friendly school.

KDE 4 Integration of Hispanic culture and respect for
diverse cultures through experiential activities and
classroom instruction.

KDE 5 Planning and instruction utilizing the workshop
model of instruction.

KDE 6 (No response)
KDE 7 (No response)
KDE 8 (No response)
KDE 9 (No response)
KDE 10 (No response)

Need additional space for variables

No
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h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

www.ecsli.org

i. Total Approved Charter Enroliment for 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program

enrollment)

850

j- Total Enroliment on June 30, 2022 (exclude Pre-K program enroliment)

850

k. Grades Served during the 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program students)

Check all that apply

Grades Served K, 1,2, 3,45,6,7,8,9,10
11. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT

ORGANIZATION?

No

FACILITIES INFORMATION
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http:www.ecsli.org

m. FACILITIES

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2022-20237

Yes, 4 sites

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL 800000063984

School Site 1 (Primary)

ml. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Physical Phone Number  District/CSD Grades to be

Address Served at Site
for coming
year (K-5, 6-9,
etc.)

605

Peninsula

Site 1 Blvd., 516-292-2060 Hempstead K-1

Hempstead,

NY

11550
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Receives
Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades
(If yes, enter
the appropriate
grades. If no,

enter No).

No



mla. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

School Leader

Operational
Leader

Compliance
Contact

Complaint
Contact

DASA
Coordinator

Phone Contact
for After Hours
Emergencies

mlb. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space

Name

Christine
Weigand

Lisett Knox

Christine
Weigand

Christine
Weigand

Elena Litescu

Christine
Weigand

Title

School Director

Director of
Finance and
Operations

School Director

School Director

Acting Principal

School Director

Work Phone

516-292-2060

516-292-2060

516-292-2060

516-292-2060

516-226-8658

516-292-2060

7174

Alternate

Phone

407-733-4861

516-884-2175

407-733-4861

407-733-4861

516-582-1931

407-733-4861

Email Address

cweigand@ecsl|

1.org

Iknox@ecsli.org

cweigand@ecsl|

1.org

cweigand@ecsl|

1.0rg

elitescu@ecsili.
org

cweigand@ecsl|

1.0rg


mailto:lknox@ecsli.org

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired
certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in
district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of
occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on

or after July 1, 2021.

e Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year
2022-2023, the fire inspection certificate must be dated after July 1, 2021.

o If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the
Annual Report, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on

November 1, 2022.
Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)
Peninsula Certificate of Occupancy.pdf

Filename: Peninsula Certificate of Occupancy.pdf Size: 122.0 kB

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

605 Peninsula Boulevard Fire Inspection 2022.pdf

Filename: 605 Peninsula Boulevard Fire Inspection 2022.pdf Size: 429.6 kB

Evergreen Charter School

School Site 2
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m2. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year.

Site 2

Physical Phone Number  District/CSD

Address

120
Greenwich

St.
516-399-1020
Hempstead,
NY
11550

Hempstead

9/74

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming
year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

6-8

Receives
Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades
(If yes, enter
the appropriate
grades. If no,

enter No).

No



m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.

School Leader

Operational
Leader

Compliance
Contact

Complaint
Contact

DASA
Coordinator

Phone Contact
for After Hours
Emergencies

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space

Name

Frances
Echevarria

Lisett Knox

Frances
Echevarria

Frances
Echevarria

Elena Litescu

Elena Litescu

Title

School Director

Director of
Finance and
Operations

School Director

School Director

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Work Phone

516-399-1020

516-292-2060

516-399-1020

516-399-1020

516-216-5981

516-399-1020
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Alternate

Phone

516-582-1931

516-884-2175

516-582-1931

516-582-1931

516-330-2008

516-582-1931

Email Address

fechevarria@ec
sli.org

Iknox@ecsli.org

fechevarria@ec
sli.org

fechevarria@ec
sli.org

elitescu@ecsliu
.org

elitescu@ecsli.
org



mailto:lknox@ecsli.org

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired
certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in
district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of
occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on

or after July 1, 2022.

e Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year
2022-2023, the fire inspection certificate must be dated after July 1, 2022.

o If the fire inspection certificate expires after the August 1, 2022 submission of the
Annual Report, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on

November 1, 2022. Please note in the portal that this is the case

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

Greenwich Certificate of Occupancy.pdf

Filename: Greenwich Certificate of Occupancy.pdf Size: 463.3 kB

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report

120 Greenwich Fire Inspectoin 2022.pdf

Filename: 120 Greenwich Fire Inspectoin 2022.pdf Size: 417.6 kB

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL 800000063984

School Site 3
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m3. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on site 3 for the upcoming school year.

Physical Phone Number  District/CSD Grades to be Receives
Address Served at Site Rental
for coming Assistance for

year (K-5, 6-9, Which Grades
etc.) (If yes, enter
the appropriate

grades. If no,

enter No).
436 Front
. STreet,
Site 3 516-226-8680 Hempstead 2-5 No
Hempstead, NY
11550
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m3a. Please provide the contact information for Site 3.

School Leader

Operational
Leader

Compliance
Contact

Complaint
Contact

DASA
Coordinator

Phone Contact
for After Hours
Emergencies

m3b. Is site 3 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space

Name

Elena Litescu

Lisett Knox

Elena Litescu

Elena Litescu

Elena Litescu

Elena Litescu

Title

Acting Principal

Director of
Finance and
Operations

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Work Phone

516-399-1020

516-292-2060

516-399-1020

516-399-1020

516-399-1020

516-399-1020
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Alternate

Phone

516-582-1931

516-884-2175

516-582-1931

516-582-1931

516-582-1931

516-582-1931

Email Address

elitescu@ecsli.
org

Iknox@ecsli.org

elitescu@ecsli.
org

elitescu@ecsili.
org

elitescu@ecsili.
org

elitescu@ecsli.
org



mailto:lknox@ecsli.org

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired
certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in
district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of
occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on

or after July 1, 2022.

e Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year
2022-2023, the fire inspection certificate must be dated after July 1, 2022.

o If the fire inspection certificate expires after the August 1, 2022 submission of the
Annual Report, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on

November 1, 2022. Please note in the portal that this is the case

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

436 Front Street COO.pdf

Filename: 436 Front Street COO.pdf Size: 106.0 kB

Site 3 Fire Inspection Report

436 Front Street Fire Inspection 2022.pdf

Filename: 436 Front Street Fire Inspection 2022.pdf Size: 440.9 kB

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL 800000063984

School Site 4
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m4. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 4 for the upcoming school year.

Physical Phone Number  District/CSD Grades to be Receives
Address Served at Site Rental
for coming Assistance for

year (K-5, 6-9, Which Grades
etc.) (If yes, enter
the appropriate

grades. If no,

enter No).
94 Fulton
. Street,
Site 4 516-216-5981 Hempstead 9-11 No
Hemsptead, NY
11550
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mda. Please provide the contact information for Site 4.

School Leader

Operational
Leader

Compliance
Contact

Complaint
Contact

DASA
Coordinator

Phone Contact
for After Hours
Emergencies

m4b. Is site 4 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space

Name

Acting Principal

Lisett Knox

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Title

Acting Principal

Director of
Finance and
Operations

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Acting Principal

Work Phone

516-216-5981

516-292-2060

516-216-5981

516-216-5981

516-216-5981

516-216-5981
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Alternate

Phone

516-582-1931

516-884-2175

516-582-1931

516-582-1931

516-582-1931

516-582-1931

Email Address

Elitescu@ecsli.
org

Iknox@ecsli.org

Elitescu@ecsli.
org

Elitescu@ecsli.
org

Elitescu@ecsli.
org

Elitescu@ecsli.
org



mailto:lknox@ecsli.org

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired
certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in
district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of
occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on

or after July 1, 2022.

e Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year
2022-2023, the fire inspection certificate must be dated after July 1, 2022.

o If the fire inspection certificate expires after the August 1, 2022 submission of the
Annual Report, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on

November 1, 2022. Please note in the portal that this is the case

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

94 Fulton Street COO.pdf

Filename: 94 Fulton Street COO.pdf Size: 4.7 MB

Site 4 Fire Inspection Report

94 Fulton Street Fire Inspection 2022.pdf

Filename: 94 Fulton Street Fire Inspection 2022.pdf Size: 397.2 kB

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2021-2022 SCHOOL YEAR

nl. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2021-2022 school year? (Please

include approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions).

Yes

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions

Category (Select Specific Revision Date Approved by  Date Approved by

17774



Best Description)

Other

Other

Other

(150 word limit) BOT (if applicable)

Additional
School
Location-94
4/27/2022
Fulton

Ave.

Hempstead, NY
11550

Additional
School

Space/Administrati
on -28

Richardson

St. 7/14/2022

Hempstea
dr

11550

Additional

School

Location-
436

St.

18/74

Authorizer (if

applicable)



Hempstead, NY

11550

Additional School
Location

120 Greenwich
Street,
Hempstead, NY
11550

4 Other

Additional School
property for
parking and future
expansion

495 Peninsula
Boulevard,
Hempstead, NY
11550

5 Other

More revisions to add?

Yes
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n2. Summary of Charter Revisions

Category (Select

Best Description)

6 Other
7 Other
8 Other
9

10

Specific Revision Date Approved by

(150 word limit) BOT (if applicable)

Additional School
property for future
school location to
be constructed

37 Laurel Avenue,
Hempstead, NY
11550

Additional School
property for future
school location to
be constructed
27-33 Laurel
Avenue,
Hempstead, NY
11550

Additional School
property for
parking and future
expansion

60 Sycamore
Avenue,
Hempstead, NY
11550

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if

applicable)

0. Has your school's Board of Trustee's approved a budget for the 2021-2022 FY?

Yes
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ATTESTATIONS

p- Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. (To write type in a phone
number with an extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at
the end of the phone number refers to the individual's phone extension. Do not type in the
work extension or the abbreviation for it - just the dash and the extension number after the

phone number).

Name Karen Leeper
Position Acting Principal
Phone/Extension 516-292-2060
Email kleeper@ecsli.org

p- Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President)
below attest that our school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee
clearance and fingerprint requirements as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO

Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to agree.

Responses Selected:

Yes

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President)
below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this
charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal,
State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in any part
of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds
for the revocation of our charter. Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the

stylus on your mobile device to sign your name).

Responses Selected:

Yes
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Signature, Head of Charter School

o, dospe

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date

Aug 1 2022

Thank you. i

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

Completed Nov 1 2022

Instructions

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY
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The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and
Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward
Charter Goals as per their currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2022.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is
marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved
charter, and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all

goals no later than November 2, 2022.

EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL 800000063984

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and
Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward

Charter Goals as per their currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2022,

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student  Measure Used to Goal - Met, Not If not met,

Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Met or Unable to describe efforts
Toward Attainment Assess the school will take
of Goal to meet goal. If

unable to assess
goal, type N/A for
Not Applicable
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Academic Goal 1

75% of K-5
students will be
proficient in ELA.

Fountas and

Pinnell

24 | 74

Not Met

To close the
performance gap,
the school will
undertake the
following
initiatives:

Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response
to Intervention
Program (RTI) and
Academic
Intervention
Services (AIS).

Provide additional
training and time
for teachers to
analyze student
performance data
on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the
Data Specialist.

Continue to
provide
professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English
Language Arts
Standards. This
would include
research-based
strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
skills for literacy
instruction.

Continue to offer



Academic Goal 2

75% of tested
students in
Kindergarten will
reach or surpass
the expected on
level range scaled
score on the
iReady Diagnostic
in Reading OR 75%
of tested students
in Kindergarten will

demonstrate

adequate growth iReady Diagnostic

) ] ) ) Met
in Reading by in Reading

reducing the gap

that exists

between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in first
grade will reach or
surpass the

25/ 74

After School,
Saturday and
Summer Programs
to provide
additional small
group support.

Continue to offer
parent
workshops/training
s designed to
support literacy
skills at home.



Academic Goal 3

expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in
Reading OR 75% of
tested students in
first grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Reading by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

iReady Diagnostic
in Reading

26 /74

Met

To close the
performance gap,
the school will
undertake the
following
initiatives:

Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response
to Intervention
Program (RTI) and
Academic
Intervention
Services (AIS).

Provide additional
training and time
for teachers to
analyze student
performance data
on an ongoing



Academic Goal 4

75% of tested
students in second
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in
Reading OR 75% of
tested students in
second grade will

demonstrate

adequate growth iReady Diagnostic
in Reading by in Reading
reducing the gap

that exists

between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment

(spring).

27174

Not Met

basis with the
support of the
Data Specialist.

Continue to
provide
professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English
Language Arts
Standards. This
would include
research-based
strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
skills for literacy
instruction.

Continue to utilize
iReady, a
technology-based
program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth
and needs along
with an action plan
for instruction.

Continue to offer
After School,
Saturday and
Summer Programs
to provide
additional small
group support.

Continue to offer
parent
workshops/training



Academic Goal 5

Academic Goal 6

75% of tested
students in third
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in
Reading OR 75% of
tested students in
third grade will
demonstrate

adequate growth  jpaady Diagnostic

in Reading

in Reading by Met

reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment

(spring).

75% of tested
students in fourth
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in
Reading OR 75% of
tested students in
fourth grade will
demonstrate

édequa.te growth iReady Diagnostic
in Reading by Met

28 /74

s designed to
support literacy
skills at home.



reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in fifth
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in

in Reading

29 /74

To close the
performance gap,
the school will
undertake the
following
initiatives:

Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response
to Intervention
Program (RTI) and
Academic
Intervention
Services (AIS).

Provide additional
training and time
for teachers to
analyze student
performance data
on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the
Data Specialist.

Continue to
provide
professional
development



Academic Goal 7

Reading OR 75% of
tested students in
fifth grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Reading by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in sixth
grade will reach or
surpass the

iReady Diagnostic
in Reading
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Not Met

opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English
Language Arts
Standards. This
would include
research-based
strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
skills for literacy
instruction.

Continue to utilize
iReady, a
technology-based
program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth
and needs along
with an action plan
for instruction.

Continue to offer
After School,
Saturday and
Summer Programs
to provide
additional small
group support.

Continue to offer
parent
workshops/training
s designed to
support literacy
skills at home.



Academic Goal 8

expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in
Reading OR 75% of
tested students in
sixth grade will

demonstrate

adequate growth iReady Diagnostic

) ] ) ] Met
in Reading by in Reading

reducing the gap

that exists

between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment
(spring).
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To close the
performance gap,
the school will
undertake the
following
initiatives:

Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response
to Intervention
Program (RTI) and
Academic
Intervention
Services (AIS).

Provide additional
training and time
for teachers to
analyze student
performance data



Academic Goal 9

75% of tested
students in
seventh grade will
reach or surpass
the expected on
level range scaled
score on the
iReady Diagnostic
in Reading OR 75%
of tested students
in seventh grade
will demonstrate
adequate growth
in Reading by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their

iReady Diagnostic
in Reading

preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment
(spring).
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Not Met

on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the
Data Specialist.

Continue to
provide
professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English
Language Arts
Standards. This
would include
research-based
strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
skills for literacy
instruction.

Continue to utilize
iReady, a
technology-based
program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth
and needs along
with an action plan
for instruction.

Continue to offer
After School,
Saturday and
Summer Programs
to provide
additional small
group support.

Continue to offer
parent



Academic Goal 10

75% of tested
students in eighth
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in
Reading OR 75% of
tested students in
eighth grade will

demonstrate

adequate growth iReady Diagnostic
in Reading by in Reading
reducing the gap

that exists

between their
preliminary (fall)
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Not Met

workshops/training
s designed to
support literacy
skills at home.

To close the
performance gap,
the school will
undertake the
following
initiatives:

Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response
to Intervention
Program (RTI) and
Academic
Intervention
Services (AlS).

Provide additional
training and time
for teachers to
analyze student
performance data
on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the
Data Specialist.

Continue to
provide
professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the English
Language Arts
Standards. This
would include
research-based
strategies to
improve teacher



iReady scaled
score in Reading
and the on level
range scaled score
by 50% on the
final diagnostic
assessment

(spring).

2. Do have more academic goals to add?

Yes

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student = Measure Used to Goal - Met, Not
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Met or Unable to

Toward Attainment Assess
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pedagogy and
skills for literacy
instruction.

Continue to utilize
iReady, a
technology-based
program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth
and needs along
with an action plan
for instruction.

Continue to offer
After School,
Saturday and
Summer Programs
to provide
additional small
group support.

Continue to offer
parent
workshops/training
s designed to
support literacy
skills at home.

2019-2020
progress toward

attainment of goal



Academic Goal 11

75% of tested
students in
Kindergarten will
reach or surpass
the expected on
level range scaled
score on the
iReady Diagnostic
in Math OR 75% of
tested students in
Kindergarten will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range
scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in first
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in first
grade will
demonstrate

of Goal

iReady Diagnostic
in Math
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Met

Met/Not
Met/Unable to
Assess During Due

to Closure



Academic Goal 12

Academic Goal 13

adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range
scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in second
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in second
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range
scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in third
grade will reach or

iReady Diagnostic
in Math

iReady Diagnostic
in Math
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Met

Met



Academic Goal 14

Academic Goal 15

surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in third
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range

iReady Diagnostic
in Math

scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in fourth
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in fourth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists

iReady Diagnostic
in Math

between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and

37174

Met

Met



Academic Goal 16

the on level range
scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in fifth
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in fifth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists

iReady Diagnostic
in Math

between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range
scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in sixth
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in sixth
grade will
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Met



Academic Goal 17

demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists

iReady Diagnostic
in Math

between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range
scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of tested
students in
seventh grade will
reach or surpass
the expected on

39/74

Met

To close the
performance gap,
the school will
undertake the
following
initiatives:

Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response
to Intervention
Program (RTI) and
Academic
Intervention
Services (AIS).

Provide additional
training and time
for teachers to
analyze student
performance data
on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the
Data Specialist.

Continue to
provide



Academic Goal 18

level range scaled
score on the
iReady Diagnostic

in Math OR 75% of

tested students in
seventh grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range
scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

iReady Diagnostic
in Math

Not Met
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professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Standards. This
would include
research-based
strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
skills for
mathematics
instruction.

Continue to utilize
iReady, a
technology-based
program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth
and needs along
with an action plan
for instruction.

Continue to offer
After School,
Saturday and
Summer Programs
to provide
additional small
group support.

Continue to offer
parent
workshops/training
s designed to
support
mathematics skills
at home.



Academic Goal 19

75% of tested
students in eighth
grade will reach or
surpass the
expected on level
range scaled score
on the iReady
Diagnostic in Math
OR 75% of tested
students in eighth
grade will
demonstrate
adequate growth
in Math by
reducing the gap
that exists
between their
preliminary (fall)
iReady scaled
score in Math and
the on level range

iReady Diagnostic
in Math
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Not Met

To close the
performance gap,
the school will
undertake the
following
initiatives:

Continue to
strengthen the
school’s Response
to Intervention
Program (RTI) and
Academic
Intervention
Services (AIS).

Provide additional
training and time
for teachers to
analyze student
performance data
on an ongoing
basis with the
support of the
Data Specialist.

Continue to
provide
professional
development
opportunities that
support the
implementation of
the Mathematics
Standards. This
would include
research-based
strategies to
improve teacher
pedagogy and
skills for
mathematics
instruction.

Continue to utilize



scaled score by
50% on the final
diagnostic
assessment
(spring).

75% of third grade
students will be
proficient in ELA

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Academic Goal 20 Unable to Assess

3. Do have more academic goals to add?

Yes

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student  Measure Used to Goal - Met, Not

Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Met or Unable to
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iReady, a
technology-based
program that
diagnoses student
performance and
provides data on
student growth
and needs along
with an action plan
for instruction.

Continue to offer
After School,
Saturday and
Summer Programs
to provide
additional small
group support.

Continue to offer
parent
workshops/training
s designed to
support
mathematics skills
at home.

N/A

If not met,

describe efforts



Academic Goal 21

Academic Goal 22

Academic Goal 23

Academic Goal 24

Academic Goal 25

Academic Goal 26

Academic Goal 27

75% of fourth
grade students will
be proficient in
ELA

75% of fifth grade
students will be
proficient in ELA

75% of sixth grade
students will be
proficient in ELA

75% of seventh
grade students will
be proficient in
ELA

75% of eighth
grade students will
be proficient in
ELA

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 3
NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 4

Toward Attainment

of Goal

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test
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Meet

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

the school will take
to meet goal. If
unable to assess
goal, type N/A for
Not Applicable

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Academic Goal 28

Academic Goal 29

Academic Goal 30

Academic Goal 31

Academic Goal 32

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 5
NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 6
NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 7
NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 8
NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

75% of third grade
students will be

NYS Common Core
English Language Unable to Assess

Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language Unable to Assess

Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language Unable to Assess

Arts Test

NYS Common Core
English Language
Arts Test

Unable to Assess

NYS Common Core
) Unable to Assess
MathematicsTest
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N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Academic Goal 33

Academic Goal 34

Academic Goal 35

Academic Goal 36

Academic Goal 37

Academic Goal 38

Academic Goal 39

proficient in Math

75% of fourth
grade students will
be proficient in
Math

75% of fifth grade
students will be
proficient in Math

75% of sixth grade
students will be
proficient in Math

75% of seventh
grade students will
be proficient in
Math

75% of eighth
grade students will
be proficient in
Math

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 3
NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 4
NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

Evergreen
students will
outperform

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest
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Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Academic Goal 40

Academic Goal 41

Academic Goal 42

Academic Goal 43

Academic Goal 44

Academic Goal 45

Academic Goal 46

Academic Goal 47

Academic Goal 48

Academic Goal 49

students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 5
NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 6
NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 7
NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

Evergreen
students will
outperform
students enrolled
in the local district
on the Grade 8
NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

75% of fourth
grade students will
be proficient in
Science

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

NYS Common Core
MathematicsTest

Grade 4 NYS
Science Test
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Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

Unable to Assess

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Academic Goal 50

Academic Goal 51

Academic Goal 52

Academic Goal 53

Academic Goal 54

Academic Goal 55

Academic Goal 56

Academic Goal 57

Academic Goal 58

Academic Goal 59

Academic Goal 60

Academic Goal 61

Academic Goal 62

Academic Goal 63

Academic Goal 64

Academic Goal 65

Academic Goal 66

Academic Goal 67

Academic Goal 59

Academic Goal 60

Academic Goal 61

Academic Goal 62

4774



4. ORGANIZATION GOALS

For the 2021-2022 school year, any organization
goals that cannot be evaluated due to school closure
resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing,
surveying, and other usual practices should be
reported as “N/A”.

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals

Organizational Measure Used to Goal - Met, Not If not met,
Goal Evaluate Progress Met, or Unable to describe efforts
Assess the school will take

to meet goal. If
unable to assess
goal, type N/A for
Not Applicable

Evergreen Charter
School will have an SchoolTool

Org Goal 1 annual average Attendance Met
attendance rate of Summary Report
90%

94% of students
will return to
Evergreen Charter
School.

The Data Director
will conduct a
research study to
further examine

95% of students
will return to

Org Goal 2 Evergreen Charter Enroliment Data Not Met the -r(.aasons why
School families may
choose to
withdraw their
children and

formulate a plan of
action based on
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Org Goal 3

Org Goal 4
Org Goal 5
Org Goal 6
Org Goal 7
Org Goal 8
Org Goal 9
Org Goal 10
Org Goal 11
Org Goal 12
Org Goal 13
Org Goal 14
Org Goal 15
Org Goal 16
Org Goal 17
Org Goal 18
Org Goal 19

Org Goal 20

80% of parents will
express
satisfaction with
the instructional
program and staff
at Evergreen

Parent Survey

5. Do have more organizational goals to add?

No
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Met

findings.



6. FINANCIAL GOALS

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goal 1

Financial Goal 2

Financial Goals

Keep line of credit
current.

Our long-term goal
is to establish a
three month cash
reserve by earning
a $100,000
operating surplus
each year until the
goal is achieved.

This is a new goal
to secure bond

Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Written document
of line of credit
from financial
institution.

Calculate whether
or not the
$100,000
operating surplus
is met by the
following formula
= Net income
(loss) for the year
+ Depreciation
expense - capital
additions + any
long debt acquired
to fund capital
additions - long
term debt
payments

Written
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Goal - Met, Not
Met, or Partially
Met

Met

Not Met

If not met,
describe efforts
the school will take

to meet goal.

N/A

The reason we
have not met the
goal this year is
because the school
is in the process of
expansion and
facility
construction
planning and it has
used some of its
cash reserves to
cover soft costs
related to these
efforts include
architectural and
related costs
associated with
the planning of its
secondary school
facility. Our future
budget will
continue to build in
the surplus needed
to continue
progress towards
this goal.



Financial Goal 3

Financial Goal 4

Financial Goal 5

financing to build a
school facility and
cover costs
associated with
planning and
construction to
accommodate
Evergreen’s
growing student
body, as approved
by the Board of
Regents.

documentation
that bond
financing has been
obtained to build
school facility and
support related
costs associated
with school facility
planning and
construction.

7. Do have more financial goals to add?

No

Thank you.

Entry 3 Accountability Plan Progress Reports

Incomplete Hidden from applicant

Instructions

Not Met

The school is in the
final process of
securing the bond
financing. The
school hopes to
meet this goal
later this school
year and close on
its bond financing.

SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY- Complete Template and Upload to Epicenter

SUNY-authorized charter schools must download an Accountability Plan Progress Report template at
Accountability Plan Progress Report. After completing, SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the

document into the SUNY Epicenter system by September 15, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED

CSO.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes

only.

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements
Completed Oct 28 2022

Required of ALL Charter Schools

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in
PDF format into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to
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NYSED CSO. SUNY-authorized charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as
password protection are turned off.

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools must upload final, audited
financial statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2022. Upload the
independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as
one submission, combined into a PDF file, ensuring that security features such as password protections
are removed from all school uploaded documents.

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as visible and optional task in the online portal until August 1
2022 but will be identified as a required task thereafter and due on November 1, 2022. This is a
required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Fin Stmts YE Jun 30 2022 & 2021 (1)

Filename: Fin Stmts YE Jun 30 2022 2021 1.pdf Size: 2.6 MB

Entry 4a - Audited Financial Report Template (SUNY)

Incomplete Hidden from applicant

Instructions - SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

SUNY-authorized schools must download the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report
Template” at http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/. After completing, schools must upload the
document into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to
NYSED CSO.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Entry 4b - Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE)

Completed Nov 1 2022

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited
Financial Report Template” from the online portal or the 2021-2022 Annual Reports webpage. Upload the
completed file in Excel format and submit by November 1, 2022.

EDUCATION CORPORATIONS WITH MORE THAN ONE SCHOOL SHOULD COMPLETE THE
EXCEL SPREADSHEET FOR THE EDUCATION CORPORATION AS A WHOLE, NOT FOR THE
INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS. PLEASE SUBMIT THE SAME EXCEL SPREADSHEET FOR EACH OF
THE SCHOOLS.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Audited Financial Report FY22

Filename: Audited Financial Report FY22.xlsx Size: 73.9 kB
Entry 4c - Additional Financial Documents
Completed Nov 1 2022
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http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial
documents and submit by November 1, 2022. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an

explanation if not applicable or available. For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because
the school did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.”

Advisory and/or Management letter

Federal Single Audit

CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report

Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1]

Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations

ol ol S o

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per
school is $100,000.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Filename: 1. Advisory And Or Management Letter.doc Size: 178.2 kB

Filename: 5. Corretive Action Plan and Manag 9o0z3sfw.doc Size: 178.2 kB

Filename: 3. CSP Agreed upon Procedure Report .doc Size: 178.2 kB

Filename: 2. ECS Financial Statements includ XY5YOLS.pdf Size: 2.6 MB

Filename: 4. Escrow Statement For Evergreen XdxMsm6.pdf Size: 110.1 kB

Entry 4d - Financial Services Contact Information

Completed Nov 1 2022

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter financial contact information
directly into the form within the portal by November 1, 2022.

Form for "Financial Services Contact Information"
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1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal
Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone
Lisett Knox Iknox@ecsli.org 516-292-2060

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit School Audit School Audit Years Working With

Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone This Audit Firm

Condon O'Meara
McGinty &
Donnelly LLP

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial

services firm.

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years With
Person Address Firm
175 West
Shawn Shawn .
Main Street, 1
Thomas Thomas .
Suite 2

Entry 5 - Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget

Completed Nov 1 2022

SUNY-authorized charter schools should download the 2022-23 Budget and Quarterly Report
Template and the 2022-23 Budget Narrative Questionnaire from the SUNY website and upload the
completed template into Epicenter. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED CSO. Due November 1, 2022.

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a copy of the
school’s FY22 Budget using the 2022-2023 Budget Template in the portal or from the Annual Report
website. Due November 1, 2022.

The assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-
explanatory. Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that
indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable
page number in Section I, C of the application narrative.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.
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2022 - 2023 ECS State Budget

Filename: 2022 2023 ECS State Budget.xlsx Size: 46.6 kB

Entry 6 - Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form

Completed Nov 1 2022

Due on August 1, 2022, each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter
school education corporation governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2021-2022
school year must complete and sign a Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form. Acceptable signature
formats include:

e Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign)
e Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4.
upload into portal)

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. The
education corporation is responsible for completing the form for trustees who left the board
during the reporting year.

Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. Only the latest version of the form (updated in
April, 2022) is acceptable.).

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to
complete a separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Disclosure
of Financial Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the
governing education corporation.

ECS 2021-2022 Board Financial Disclosure Forms

Filename: ECS 2021 2022 Board Financial Disc 4H7KSnD.pdf Size: 1.7 MB

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table

Completed Nov 12022

Instructions

Required of ALL charter schools

ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of
Trustees Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who
are members of the Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members.

Entry 7 BOT Table

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide
information for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees.
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL 800000063984

Authorizer:

Who is the authorizer of your charter school?

Board of Regents

1. 2021-2022 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee  Trustee  Position Commit Voting Number Start End Board

Name Email on the tee Member of Terms Date of Dateof Meeting
Address Board Affiliatio Per By- Served Current Current s

ns Laws Term Term Attende
(Y/N) (MM/DD (MM/DD d

YYYY) YYYY) During

2021-

2022

Executiv

e

Finance

Fcliend 07/012  06/30/2
Chair on and Yes 5 12

Account 020 023

ability

Personn

el

Gil
1 Bernardi
no

Executiv
e

Finance

Treasure ; 07/01/2 06/30/2
Educati Yes 4 /01/ /30/ 11
r 021 024

Jose

Canosa on and

Account
ability

Executiv
e
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Sarah
Brewste
r

Gladys
Rodrigu
ez

Nancy
Iglesias

Yvonne
Mowatt

Ariel
Sotelo

Vice
Chair

Secretar
y

Trustee/
Member

Trustee/
Member

Trustee/
Member

Finance
Educati
on and
Account
ability
Personn
el

Yes

Executiv
e
Finance
Personn
el
Educati
on and
Account
ability

Yes

Educati

on and
Account
ability
Executiv e
e

personn

el

Executiv

e

Finance
Personn

el Yes
Educati

on and
Account
ability

Executiv

e

Educati

on and
Account Yes
ability
Finance
Personn

57174

07/01/2
021

07/01/2
022

07/01/2
021

07/01/2
021

07/01/2
020

06/30/2
024

06/30/2
025

06/30/2
023

06/30/2
024

06/30/2
023

12

12

11

9



el

Executiv
: Trustee/ e 07/01/2 06/30/2
8 Luis Ras Yes 5 12
Member Personn 020 023
el

la. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees?

No

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to

all trustees.

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2022 8

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2021-
2022

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during
2021-2022

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws,

Resolution or Minutes

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2021-2022

14
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4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2022-2023

12

Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2022:

Total number of Voting Members added during the 2021-2022 school year:

Total number of Voting Members who departed during the 2021-2022 school year:

Total Maximum Number of Voting members in 2021-2022, as set by the board in bylaws,

resolution, or minutes:

15

Total number of Non-Voting Members on June 30, 2022:

Total number of Non-Voting Members added during the 2021-2022 school year:
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Total number of Non-Voting Members who departed during the 2021-2022 school year:

Total Maximum Number of Non-Voting members in 2021-2022, as set by the board in bylaws,

resolution or minutes:

Board members attending 8 or fewer meetings during 2021-2022

Thank you.

Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes

Completed Nov 1 2022

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2021-June 2022), which
should match the number of meetings held during the 2021-2022 school year, as indicated in the above
table. The minutes provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and
may be uploaded individually or as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted
by August 1, 2022.

BOT Minutes 2021-2022

Filename: BOT Minutes 2021 2022.pdf Size: 3.1 MB

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention
Completed Nov 1 2022
Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2021-2022 toward meeting targets to
attract and retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities (SWDs), English Language Learners
(ELLs), and students who are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for
meeting or making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2022-2023.
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Entry
Populations

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Economically Disadvantaged

Describe Recruitment Efforts in
2021-2022

Evergreen Charter School
recruited students in several
ways, beginning with alerting
various community and religious
based institutions and
organizations such as The
Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The
Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn
Family Resource Center, The
Hispanic Counseling Center,
Head Start, and local soup
kitchens, among others.
Information was posted on the
school’s website and flyers were
distributed throughout the
community. All correspondence
was written in English and
Spanish to accommodate the
diverse members of the
Hempstead community. These
recruitment efforts have enabled
Evergreen to reach out to
underserved families of low to
moderate income including
families with children who have
disabilities and families with
children that are English
Language Learners.

Evergreen Charter School
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9 Enroliment and Retention of Special

Describe Recruitment Plans in
2022-2023

Evergreen Charter School will
continue to recruit students in
several ways, beginning with
alerting various community and
religious based institutions and
organizations such as The
Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The
Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn
Family Resource Center, The
Hispanic Counseling Center,
among others. More detailed
information will be posted on the
school’s updated website
regarding support services. Open
Houses will be organized to
provide an awareness of the
educational programs and
opportunities that Evergreen
offers. Updated flyers will be
distributed throughout the
community. Evergreen will place
additional announcements in
local community papers including
Spanish newspapers. All
correspondences will continue to
be written in English and Spanish
to accommodate the diverse
members of the Hempstead



English Language Learners

increased outreach efforts to the
African American and Caribbean
American communities, as the
school has seen a decrease in
enrollment of these populations
over the past several years.
Throughout the year, letters were
sent to local church leaders as
part of the school’s recruitment
efforts.

Evergreen Charter School
recruited students in a number of
ways, beginning with alerting
various community and religious
based institutions and
organizations such as The
Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The
Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn
Family Resource Center, The
Hispanic Counseling Center,
Head Start, and local soup
kitchens, among others.
Information was posted on the
school’s website and flyers were
distributed throughout the
community. In addition,
Evergreen placed
announcements in local
community papers including
Spanish newspapers. All
correspondences were written in
English and Spanish in an effort
to accommodate the diverse
members of the Hempstead
community. These recruitment
efforts have enabled Evergreen

62 /74

community. These recruitment
efforts will continue to enable
Evergreen to reach out to
underserved families of low to
moderate income including
families with children who have
disabilities and families with
children that are English
Language Learners.

Evergreen Charter School will
continue to recruit students in a
number of ways, beginning with
alerting various community and
religious based institutions and
organizations such as The
Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The
Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn
Family Resource Center, The
Hispanic Counseling Center,
Head Start, and local soup
kitchens, among others. More
detailed information will be
posted on the school’s updated
website regarding support
services and programs for
English Language Learners. Open
Houses will be organized to
provide an awareness of the
educational opportunities that
Evergreen offers. Updated flyers
will be distributed throughout the
community. Evergreen will place
additional announcements in
local community papers including
Spanish newspapers. All
correspondences will continue to
be written in English and Spanish
to accommodate the diverse
members of the Hempstead



Students with Disabilities

to reach out to underserved
families of low to moderate
income including families with
children who have disabilities
and families with children that
are English Language Learners.

Evergreen Charter School
recruited students in a number of
ways, beginning with alerting
various community and religious
based institutions and
organizations such as The
Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The
Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn
Family Resource Center, The
Hispanic Counseling Center,
Head Start, and local soup
kitchens, among others.
Information was posted on the
school’s website and flyers were
distributed throughout the
community. In addition,
Evergreen placed
announcements in local
community papers including
Spanish newspapers. All
correspondence was written in
English and Spanish in an effort
to accommodate the diverse
members of the Hempstead
community. These recruitment
efforts have enabled Evergreen
to reach out to underserved
families of low to moderate
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community. These recruitment
efforts will continue to enable
Evergreen to reach out to
underserved families of low to
moderate income including
families with children who have
disabilities and families with
children that are English
Language Learners.

Evergreen Charter School will
continue to recruit students in a
number of ways, beginning with
alerting various community and
religious based institutions and
organizations such as The
Nassau County Department of
Social Services, The Family
Services Corporation, The
Interfaith Nutrition Network,
Union Baptist Church, Miracle
Christian Center, The Hagerdorn
Family Resource Center, The
Hispanic Counseling Center,
Head Start, and local soup
kitchens, among others. More
detailed information regarding
special education will be posted
on the school’s updated website.
Open Houses will be organized to
provide an awareness of the
educational programs and
opportunities that Evergreen
offers. Updated flyers will be
distributed throughout the
community. Evergreen will place
additional announcements in
local community papers including
Spanish newspapers. All
correspondences will continue to
be written in English and Spanish
in an effort to accommodate the
diverse members of the
Hempstead community. These



income including families with
children who have disabilities
and families with children that
are English Language Learners.

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Economically Disadvantaged

English Language Learners

Describe Retention Efforts in
2021-2022

To retain and address the needs
of economically disadvantaged
students, Evergreen provided
individualized and small group
interventions designed to
accelerate learning and close
achievement gaps. Evergreen
supported families by offering
outreach programs and
workshops.

To retain and address the needs
of students with limited English
proficiency, Evergreen had on
staff the full time equivalent of
eight (8 FTE) English as Second
Language Teachers who provided
individualized and small group
instruction to support the needs
of English Language Learners.
These teachers worked
collaboratively with classroom
teachers.

Professional development was
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recruitment efforts will continue
to enable Evergreen to reach out
to underserved families of low to
moderate income including
families with children who have
disabilities and families with
children that are English
Language Learners.

Describe Retention Plans in
2022-2023

Evergreen will continue to
provide individualized and small
group interventions designed to
accelerate learning and close
achievement gaps.

Students’ progress toward
attaining goals determines the
type, duration, and intensity of
continued support.

Evergreen will hire additional
staff to support the School’s RTI
and AIS programs.

To support the needs of families,
Evergreen will continue to
provide outreach workshops and
programs.

Teachers will continue to provide
individualized and small group
instruction to support the needs
of English Language Learners.
These teachers will work
collaboratively with classroom
teachers to support and scaffold
learning. Professional
development will be provided to
all staff in the area of best
teaching practices and strategies
for English Language Learners.



Students with Disabilities

provided to all staff in the area of
best teaching practices and
strategies for English Language
Learners.

To retain and address the needs
of students with disabilities,
Evergreen faculty administered
diagnostic/benchmark
assessments to all students at
the start of the school year.
Struggling learners were
provided with individualized
interventions, designed to
accelerate learning and close
achievement gaps. Students’
progress toward attaining goals
determined the type, duration,
and intensity of continued
support services.

Parent workshops were held
throughout the year to support
families of students with
disabilities.

The school’s efforts and plans
have resulted in a steady or
increased number of students
identified across special
education population groups.

To support the needs of families,
Evergreen will continue to
increase the number of outreach
workshops and programs.

Evergreen will continue to
administer diagnostic/benchmark
assessments throughout the year
to collect data and provide
individualized interventions for
struggling learners.

Evergreen will hire additional
staff to support the School’s
special education population.
Professional development will be
provided to all staff in the area of
best teaching practices and
strategies for diverse learners.
Additional parent workshops will
be held throughout the year in an
effort to support families of
students with disabilities.

Entry 10 - Teacher and Administrator Attrition
Completed Nov 1 2022

Form for "Entry 10 - Teacher and Administrator
Attrition" Revised to Employee Fingerprint
Requirements Attestation

65/74



A. TEACH System - Employee Clearance

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office

of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes

paraprofessionals and other school personnel who are provided or assigned by the district of
location, or related/contracted service providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are
required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all students,
charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of individuals who have been
denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school must terminate the request for

clearance in the TEACH system.

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through
the NYSED TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been

removed from the TEACH system, and is not employed by the school.

[1] Employees who must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors,
security personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school
building. This includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or
assigned by the district of location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED
memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-
schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf or visit the NYSED website at:
http://www.highered.nysed.qgov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html for more information regarding who

must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2.
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances

Emergency Conditional Clearances

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for
prospective employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the
school’s emergency conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school
receives notification from NYSED regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all
prospective employees through the NYSED TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is
submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours

after approval by the board.

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency

conditional clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal.

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information

can be found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo 10-20109.

Attestation

Responses Selected:

| hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements.

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers

Completed Nov 1 2022
Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New
York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those
not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of
Education.

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school
with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5.

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers

School Name:
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Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified
Teachers

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance
with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified
teachers are those not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established
by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count
of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time

teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5.

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do

not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS

FTE Count

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least
three years of elementary, middle or secondary
classroom teaching experience (as of June 30,
2022)

(9,1

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are
tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June
30, 2022)

o

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years
of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 0
2022)

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with
exceptional business, professional, artistic, 0
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022)

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 5.0
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CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER
SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION.

FTE Count
i. Mathematics 0
ii. Science 1
iii. Computer Science 0
iv. Technology 1
v. Career and Technical Education 0
Total Category B: not to exceed 5 2.0

CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS

FTE Count

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least
three years of elementary, middle or secondary
classroom teaching experience (as of June 30,
2022)

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are
tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 0
30, 2022)

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years
of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 0
2022)

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with
exceptional business, professional, artistic, 3
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022)

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 5.0
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TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS (Sum of Categories A, B AND C)

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for

that category)

FTE Count

Total 12

CATEGORY D: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCATEGORIZED, UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for

that category)

FTE Count

Total Category D 0
CATEGORY E: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF CERTIFIED TEACHERS
FTE Count
Total Category E 72

CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

FTE Count

Total Category F 84

Thank you.

Entry 12 Organization Chart

Completed Nov 1 2022
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Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Upload the 2021-2022 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart.

2022-23 ECS Organizational Chart

Filename: 2022 23 ECS Organizational Chart.pdf Size: 23.8 kB

Entry 13 School Calendar

Completed Nov 1 2022
Instructions for submitting School Calendar

Required of ALL Charter Schools

If the charter school has a tentative calendar based on available information and guidance at the time,
please submit with the August 1, 2022 submission. Charter schools must upload a final school calendar
into the portal and may do so at any time but no later than September 15, 2022.

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools
“... unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.”

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools also are required to submit school calendars that clearly

indicate the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or

instructional days for each month. See an example of a calendar showing the requested information.
Schools are encouraged to use a calendar template and ensure there is a monthly tally of instructional

days.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

2022-23 School Calendar

Filename: 2022 23 School Calendar.pdf Size: 186.4 kB

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website

Completed Nov 1 2022

Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required
to submit item 5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline

Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website.
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:

Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual Report);[1]

Board meeting notices, agendas and documents;

New York State School Report Card;

Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents,

NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY);

L
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5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency
Response Plan Memo;
6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See NYSED Subject Matter List)

[11 Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post
on their respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to
include accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the
August deadline (i.e., Repost when financials have been submitted in November.)

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website

School Name: Evergreen Charter School
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Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required

to submit item 4: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline

Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its

website. Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual
Report)

2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents

3. New York State School Report Card

4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-
Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents,
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter
Schools ONLY)

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level
safety plan (as per the September 2021
Emergency Response Plan Memo

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example:
See NYSED Subject Matter List)

Thank you.

Entry 15 Staff Roster

Completed Nov 1 2022

INSTRUCTIONS

Re

Link to Documents

https://ecsli.org/policies-and-procedures/

https://ecsli.org/wp-

content/uploads/2022/06/Board-meeting-
6.29.2022.ipg

https://data.nysed.qov/profile.php?
instid=800000063984

https://ecsli.org/wp-

content/uploads/2021/03/DASA-Updated-2.pdf

https://ecsli.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/ECS-
Code-of-Conduct-word.pdf

https://ecsli.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/2021-
22-Safety-Plan-Public-Document-Updated-9.pdf

https://ecsli.org/wp-
content/uploads/2021/04/Evergreen-FOIL-Policy-

Revised-April-28-2021.pdf

https://ecsli.org/wp-
content/uploads/2021/04/Evergreen-FOIL-Policy-

Revised-April-28-2021.pdf

uired of Regents and NYCDOE-authorized Charter Schools ONLY
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Please click on the MS Excel Faculty/Staff Roster Template and provide the following information for ANY
and ALL instructional and non-instructional employees.

Use of the 2021-2022 Annual Report Faculty/Staff roster template is required. Each of the data
elements, with the exception of the Notes, are required, and use of the drop-down options,
when provided, is also required. Reminders: Please use the notes section provided to add any
additional information as deemed necessary. Failure to adhere to the guidelines and validations in the
Staff Roster Template will result in a resubmission of a fully corrected roster.

Please note the roster should include all staff employed any point from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022,
including those employed on June 30th.

ECS_faculty-staff-roster-template KfFxiYq

Filename: ECS faculty staff roster template KfFxiYq.xlsx Size: 34.6 kB

Optional Additional Documents to Upload (BOR)

Incomplete
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Evergreen Charter School
605 Peninsula Boulevard
Hempstead, New York 11550
(516) 292-2060 Phone (516) 292-0575 Fax

1. Advisory and Management Letter

None provided by the Auditors for the 2022 FY.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees of
Evergreen Charter School

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Evergreen Charter School (the “School”)
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
ofthe School as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 and the results of its activities and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 26, 2022 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Cody Qb Yicthih « DM Ler

October 26, 2022



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
June 30
2022 2021
Current assets
Cash $ 2,285,500 $ 2,255,718
Government contracts receivable 4,031,197 2,230,611
Other receivables 175,776 92,515
Prepaid expenses and security deposits 599,759 336.474
Total current assets 7,092,232 4,915,318
Restricted cash 100,000 100,000
Property and equipment, net 7,929,992 3,964,453
Real estate deposit - 110,000
Total assets $15,122.224 $ 9,089,771
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,852,605 $ 1,483,612
PPP loan - 1,102,514
Total current liabilities 1,852,605 2,586,126
Loan payable 2,200,029 -
Total liabilities 4,052,634 2,586,126
Net assets without donor restrictions 11,069.590 6,503,645
Total liabilities and net assets without
donor restrictions $15,122.224 $ 9.089.771

See notes to financial statements.

B



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Activities

Support and revenue
Public School Districts — student enrollment
Government contracts and grants
Other

Total support and revenue

Expenses
Program services
Regular education
Elementary school
Middle school
High school
Special education
Total program services
Supporting activities
Management and general
Total expenses

Increase in net assets without donor
restrictions
Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of
year

Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year

See notes to financial statements.

Year Ended
June 30

2022 2021
$17,493,893 $13,916,199
3,337,514 895,736
47.976 51.061
20,879,383 14.862.996
9,144,564 7,701,719
3,655,283 3,107,612
895,282 828,493
377,733 386.820
14,072,862 12,024,644
2.240.576 1.487.756
16.313.438 13.512.400
4,565,945 1,350,596
6,503,645 5,153,049
$11,069,590 $ 6.503,645

|
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
without donor restrictions to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred loan costs
Forgiveness of PPP loan
(Increase) decrease in assets
Government contracts receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses and security deposits
Increase in liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Real estate deposit
Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from PPP loan
Proceeds from loan payable
Loan costs
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

Consists of:
Unrestricted
Restricted

Total

See notes to financial statements.

For the
Year Ended
June 30
2022 2021

S 4,565,945 $ 1,350,596
490,007 380,289

52,858 -
(1,102,514) -
(1,800,586) (397,154)
(83,261) 39,721
(263,285) (68,317)
368,993 444 707
2228 157 1,749,842
(4,455,546) (1,058,762)
110,000 (110.000)
(4,345,546) (1.168.762)
- 1,102,514

2,385,034 -

(237.863) -
2.147.171 1.102.514
29,782 1,683,594
2.355.718 672,124
$ 2,385,500 $ 2.355.718
$ 2,285,500 $ 2,255,718
100,000 100,000

$ 2.385.,500 $ 2.355.718

BN]
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 1 — Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies

Nature of organization

The Evergreen Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State nonprofit corporation. The
School’s primary goal is to nurture the intellectual, physical and social development of children,
through a comprehensive program that promotes academic excellence and prepares its students for
success in school and in life.

In July 2022, Friends of Evergreen CS LLC (the “L.LLC”) was incorporated. The School is the sole
member of the LLC and for tax purposes, the LLC will be treated as a disregarded entity.

Basis of presentation

Net assets of the School are reported in each of the following two classes: (a) net assets without
donor restrictions, and (b) net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets of the restricted classes are created only by donor-imposed restrictions on their use.
Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same accounting period are reported
as contributions without donor restrictions.

As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the School has no net assets with donor restrictions.

Cash equivalents

The School deems all highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less to be cash
equivalents. As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the School has no cash equivalents.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the School’s management has determined that there are no
potentially uncollectible receivables and thus, an allowance for doubtful accounts 1s not necessary.
Such estimate is based on management’s experience, the aging of the receivables, subsequent
receipts and current economic conditions.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. The School capitalizes property and equipment
expenditures over $1,000. Leasehold improvements are being amortized using the straight-line
method over a ten year period which is the lesser of the estimated useful life or lease term. Furniture
and equipment is being depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of five
years.



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 1 — Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred loan costs

Deferred loan costs are being amortized over the term of the related loan.

Revenue recognition

The School is funded through various government grants and through tuition based upon a per pupil
allocation from public school districts in which the students are registered.

Contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor.

All other revenue sources, including government grants and tuition, are recorded as revenue when
earned.

Reimbursements under government contracts are subject to audit by the various government
agencies. The effects of any potential audit disallowances for these contracts have not been
recognized in these financial statcments. Management is of the opinion that any potential
disallowances will not be material to the accompanying financial statements.

Contributed nonfinancial assets

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the School. While these contributed services are
important in assisting the School in carrying out its operations, these volunteer services have not
been recorded in the accompanying statement of activities because they do not meet the revenue
recognition criteria for recording such services.

Functional expenses and allocations

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated between the program services and
supporting activities benefited. Expenses attributable to more than one functional category are
allocated based on time and effort.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements, Actual results could differ from these estimates.



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 1 — Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Concentrations of credit risk

The School’s financial instruments that are potentially exposed to concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of cash and receivables. Attimes during the year, the School’s bank accounts were
in excess of the FDIC insurance limit. The School places its cash with what it believes to be quality
financial institutions. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts to date.
The School’s receivables consist of amounts due from public schools, government grants and other
miscellaneous receivables. The School’s management monitors its cash and the collectability of 1ts
receivables. As a result, the School believes no significant concentrations of credit risk exist with
respect to its cash and receivables.

Subsequent events

The School has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through
October 26, 2022, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncement

The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (the “ASU”). This
ASU, effective for the School’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, requires a lessee to recognize a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
on the statement of financial position and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements.
Management is in the process of determining the impact of this ASU on its financial statements.

Note 2 — Liguidity and availability of financial assets

The School’s working capital and cash flows vary due to timing of payments received from public
school districts, government grants and other revenue items.

The following is a summary of the School’s financial assets as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021
that are available to pay general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position
date:

2022 2021
Cash — unrestricted $2,285,500  $2,255,718
(Government contracts receivable 4,031,197 2,230,611
Other receivables 175,776 92,515

Total $ 6,492,743  §$4.578.844




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 2 — Liquidity and availability of financial assets (continued)

In addition to the above financial assets, as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the School has
restricted cash of $100,000 (see note 3). To manage liquidity the School maintains a $900,000 line
of credit with a bank that may be drawn upon as needed during the year (see note 5).

Note 3 — Restricted cash

In accordance with New York State Board of Education Regulations, the School established an
escrow account in order to be able to cover certain expenses in the case of insolvency of the School.

Note 4 — Property and equipment

A summary of the property and equipment as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 is as follows:

2022 2021

Land $ 3,171,535 § 2,136,976
Buildings 1,161,218 -
Leasehold improvements 1,402,400 1,299,629
Furniture and equipment 2,212,742 1,776,625
Construction in progress 2,156,299 435.418

Sub-total 10,104,194 5,648,648
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 2.174.202 1,684.195

Total $ 7929992 § 3,964.453

During the 2021 fiscal year, the School wrote off $102,680 of fully depreciated assets.

During May 2021, the School entered into an agreement of sale for the purchase of a new property
for a total cost 0of $2,200,000. As of June 30, 2021, the School had made areal estate deposit toward
the purchase totaling $110,000. The School closed on the sale in October 2021 at a total cost of
$2,186,927. The School intends to use the property for the expansion of the middle school and high
school and its recreational and educational activities.

Note 5 — Commitments

Community Center lease

In April 2019, the School entered into a lease agreement with Circulo Real Property Holding
Corporation (the “Corporation”), a related party, to rent space at its Community Center. The lease
commenced on the date of the closing of the Agency’s Town of Hempstead Local Development
Corporation Revenue Bonds Series 2019 (the “Bonds™), which was August 2019, and terminates and
expires on the date that none of the Bonds remain outstanding and no Bonds or other debt 1ssued to
refund any of the Bonds remain outstanding (“Refunding Bonds”).



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 5 — Commitments (continued)

Community Center lease (continued)

The lease requires payments in an amount equal to the principal and interest payments due on the
Bonds and redemption premium, if any, due on the Bonds and any principal and mterest payments
and redemption premium, if any, due on any Refunding Bonds. The lease payments also will
include any amounts required to restore any debt service reserve fund for the Bonds or any
Refunding Bonds to its required funding level as noted in the Bond documents, any amounts
required to restore the Repair Fund, any Bonds Trustee fees and expenses, any TOHLDC fees and
expenses imposed under the Bond documents and all other sums, cost, expenses, charges or other
payments that the School assumes, agrees or is obligated to pay pursuant to any provision of the
lease or under the Bond documents. The lease requires the School to deposit $25,000 with the Bond
Trustee upon the commencement of the lease and annually for the next nine years for security for the
full and faithful performance by the School of all repair, maintenance and replacement obligations.
The School is also subject to certain financial covenants as defined in the lease. The lease agreement
also contains certain restrictive borrowing covenants.

Church leases

In April 2022, the School entered into a lease for additional space with a church expiring June 30,
2024. The lease requires monthly payments of $25,384 through June 2023 and increasing to
$26,146. The School has the option to extend the lease for two additional one year periods.

In December 2021, the School entered into two leases for two additional spaces with a church, both
commencing on July 1, 2022 and expiring June 30, 2028. The lease requires monthly payments of
$8,059 and $35,518 in 2023, with annual increases of 3% per year thereafter.

In May 2022, the School entered into a lease for additional space with a church commencing on
September 1, 2023 and expiring August 31, 2024. The lease requires monthly payments of $27,500
through August 2023 and increasing to $30,000 per month thereafter. The School has the option to
extend the lease for one or two years with rent increases of 3% per year.

As of June 30, 2022, the future minimum annual payments under the lease agreements are as
follows:

Community Church

Fiscal Year Center Leases Total

2023 $ 1,195,684 § 1,102,536 $ 2,298,220
2024 1,202,935 1,207,367 2,410,302
2025 1,194,024 614,774 1,808,798
2026 1,199,190 571,417 1,770,607
2027 1,202,973 588,559 1,791,532
2028 and thereafter 20,983,549 606,217 21,589,766

Total $26978,355 $ 4.690.870 $31,669.225




EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 5 — Commitments (continued)

Church leases (continued)

Rental expense for the 2022 and 2021 fiscal years was approximately $1,899,000 and $1,885,000,
respectively.

Line of credit

The School has a $900,000 revolving line of credit with a bank. The line bears interest at the Wall
Street Journal’s Prime Rate plus .5%. The line is secured by all assets of the School and expires
February 2023. As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, there was no balance outstanding under the
line.

Construction project

In August 2021, the School entered into a contract with an architect for the design of a new school
building for approximately $1,711,000. As of June 30, 2022, work completed under this agreement
totaled approximately $968,000.

Bond financing

The School is currently pursuing bond financing to construct a secondary school facility to house its
upper grades. The School received approval from the Town of Hempstead’s Local Development
Corporation for the sale of up to $75,000,000 in bond financing. The School plans to construct an
85,000 square foot building on vacant land owned by the School. The bond financing is expected to
be completed by the end of the 2022 calendar year.

Note 6 — PPP loan

During July 2020, the School applied for and in August 2020 received $1,102,514 under the
Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) which was a business loan program established under the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act. The School had elected to record the proceeds
as a liability until the loan is, in part or wholly, forgiven and the School was legally released. Any
amounts not forgiven were subject to interest at a fixed rate of 1% for a five year-term. During
February 2022, the loan was forgiven in total.



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 7 — Loan pavable

During October 2021, the School entered into a loan agreement with a Corporation whereby the
School can draw up to $4,310,000 for the purchase and development of a piece of property, closing
costs on the loan and the funding of an interest reserve up to $375,000 to be held by the Corporation.
The School has the ability to draw down on the loan through October [, 2024. The loan requires
interest at a fixed rate of 4.75% per annum and is due and payable on November 1, 2024 at which
time the outstanding loan balance, together with accrued and unpaid interest, is due in full. There
are no prepayment penalties on the loan. As of June 30, 2022, the School drew down $2,385,034 on
the loan. The loan is subject to a financial covenant and the School must maintain unrestricted cash
on hand of at least 30 days of the School’s total annual expenses (excluding depreciation). The
School has a restrictive loan covenant and cannot sell or lease any portion of the property, except in
the ordinary course of business. The loan is secured by a mortgage on the School’s real and personal

property.

As of June 30, 2022, the loan is due to be paid as follows:

Year Amount

2025 $ 2,385,034

Less: deferred loan costs (185,005)
Total $ 2,200,029

Note 8 — Retirement plan

The School sponsors a non-contributory 403(b) plan that covers all eligible employees. An eligible
employee can defer a portion of his’/her compensation not to exceed limits set by the Internal
Revenue Code for a 403(b) plan. For fiscal years ended 2022 and 2021, the School contributed
$205,188 and $220,426 to the plan, respectively.

Note 9 — Related party transactions

The Chair, Vice Chair and a member of the Board of Trustees of the School are the Executive
Director, Assistant Executive Director and an employee, respectively, of the Circulo de la
Hispanidad, Inc. (the “Agency”), a not-for-profit organization who is the sole member of the Circulo
Real Property Holding Corporation. During the 2022 and 2021 fiscal years, the School reimbursed
the Agency approximately $90 and $3,000, respectively, for expenses paid by the Agency relating to
the School’s utilities, repair and maintenance and other shared costs based upon the reimbursement
methods detailed in the lease between the organizations. Effective August 2019, the School is
responsible for substantially all building expenses. In addition, the School entered into a lease
agreement with the Corporation to rent space (see note 5).
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EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Note 10 — Tax status

The School is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code (the “Code”). In addition, the School has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service to

be a publicly supported organization and not a private foundation within the meaning of Section
509(a)(1) of the Code.



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Grantor CFDA # Contract # Expenditure Period Federal Grant

United States Department of Agriculture passed through:

New York State Education Department —

Child Nutrition Management System 10.555 N/A 09/01/21 - 06/30/22 $ 558,259

New York State Education Department —

Child Nutrition Management System 10.553 N/A 09/01/21 — 06/30/22 186,936

Sub-total 745,195

United States Department of Education passed through:

The University of the State of New York —

State Education Department — CRRSA-ESSER 2 84.425D 5891214500 03/13/20 - 09/30/23 96,633

The University of the State of New York —

State Education Department — CRRSA-ESSER 3 34.425U 5880214500 03/13/20 - 09/30/24 471,855

The University of the State of New York —

State Education Department — Title [A 84.010 0021224500 09/01/21 - 08/31/22 174,002

The University of the State of New York —

State Education Department — Title ITA 84.367 0147224500 09/01/21 —08/31/22 29,150

The University of the State of New York —

State Education Department — Title IITA 84.365A 0293224500 09/01/21 — 08/31/22 30.248

Sub-total 801.888

United States Department of Health and Human Services
passed through:

The University of the State of New York —

State Education Department — Title IV 93.472 0204224500 09/01/21 — 08/31/22 11,337

Total expenditures of federal awards

$ 1,558.420



EVERGREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2022

Basis of presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
award activity of Evergreen Charter School (the “School”) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the School, it

is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
the School.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Indirect cost rate

The School has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control one 52?&%5%‘0%'2_213405
Over Financial Reporting Tel: (212) 661 - 7777
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based Fax: (212) 861 - 4010
on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance

With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of
Evergreen Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Evergreen Charter
School (the “School™), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and
June 30, 2021 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 26, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the